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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

, Boston Mill, situated near Shedd and next to the old townsite of Boston, continues

to function today using water power. The core structure built in 1863 is of hewnpost and
beam construction and is three stories in height. The mill's original function was to
mill grain grown by area farmers into flour. A buhr stone shipped from France was used

to mill the grain until 1891, when a steel roller mill was installed. The present mill
building was built in 1863 after the original had burned in the previous year. The orig-
inal had been built in 1858 by Richard D. Finley, one of the original owners of the enter-
prise. The structure of 1863 with en]argements of 1900-1904 and 1917 are essentially in-
tact. The concrete flume walls constructed in 1937 recently collapsed, however, causing
the loss of approximately twenty-five percent of the mill's floor space. Means of stabil-
izing and restoring the weakened or lost port1ons are currently being sought.

- Situated in Sec. 8, T.13S., R.3W., W.M., on the Willamette Valley floor several miles
from the. foothills of the Cascade Mountains, the mill is en the east boundary of the his-
toric townsite of Boston. There are three houses located " nearby . the nominated prop-
erty, two of which are structural remnants of the old town. Surrounded by cultivated farm-
lands, Boston Mill is approximately 500' north of Boston Mil1l Road, a county market road
which runs east and west. The mill is advantageously sited on the mill dam at the place
where the canal empties back into the Calapooia River. The Thompson House is approximater
250' southwest of the mill.

The main mill structure is of post and beam construction rest1ng on a concrete foun-
dation (added 1933-1937, when the timber flume was replaced due to severe rotting). The
2°'1/2 story main bu}]d1ng frame was assembled one story at a time using mortise and tenon
joints held together with wooden pegs. The framing timbers are hand hewn.

Around the main structure are one story sheds of stud wall construction. The main
structure has tongue and groove siding, and the storage sheds have shiplap siding. The
four reinforced concrete silos added in 1917 are 50' in height and have walls 6" thick.
Their total capacity is 40,000 bushels of grain. Mr. Merle Thompson states that the silos
were the first concrete silos built in the central Willamette Valley. Al1 of the mill
structures have built-up asphalt roofing.

The main mass of the original mill building (1863) and the concrete silos (1917) are
surrounded on three sides by one-story flat-roofed sheds for processed grain storage and
office space. A tower above the roof of the mill is connected by an enclosed walkway to
the top of the silos. At ground level a covered delivery ramp separates the silos and the
mill building. The flood gate opening mechanisms at the front of the mill are hand opera-
ted with a series of exposed gears.

The oldest portion of the present mill building was completed after the original burn-
ed in 1862 and measures 45 x 60'. The buildings that existed before 1904 were a 2 1/2
story main building housing the machinery and grain storage bins, and a one story storage
building. The two were joined by a covered passthrough for wagons. Both bu1]d1ngs had
gab]e roofs. A small, square flat-roofed office building stood next to the main mill buil-
ing.

In 1917 the storage building was moved to the northwest side of the mill, and the roof
was removed and a flat roof built in its place. Four concrete grain silos were built where
the storage building was. The main building roof was raised to make it a full thrie
storieg in height, and a tower was added to the mill from which a passageway to the top
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. In 1933 a concrete flume replaced the severely rotted wooden fitme. Flood gates
were added to the headwater at the mill. The entire mill was raised one foot and a
concrete foundation was added. An earlier office building was removed and a new one
added across the southeast side of the mill. It is one story high with a flat roof.

In 1940 a small storage building was added over the floodgate and millrace. It
is one story in height and has a flat roof.
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The original mill building had a basement, first and second fioors. The
basement contained main power machinery, pulleys, belts, flywheels and gears. The
first floor contained grinding machinery and its office. The second floor contained
grain storage bins. The second building was used primarily for storage, with a pass
through between the two buildings for wagons.

The enlargements to the mill generally were additive; in only a few exceptions
was change made to the original organization of the main building. As additions for
storage were added to .the northwest side of the mill the main passageway was extended

from the main building through them. With the addition of the concrete silos in 1917
the loading area next to the main building was ma1nta1ned and a loading dock was

GPO 892 455
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extended from it along the southwest side of the mill. Also in 1917,the stairway in the
main building was extended in to the tower,which provides access to the passageway leading
to the top of the concrete silos. With the additions in 1933 and 1940 along the southeast
and northeast sides of the mill,the first floor walls were removed and a passageway was
provided around those sides. The mill and silos now measure 180' x 150" in plan.

The interior of the mill has always been of unfinished 2 x 6 stud walls, with the back
of the ship lap siding exposed. The floors are of six inch wide boards. Currently the
interior is painted white, and appears to have always been that way.

Description of the Thompson House

The Thompson House was built next to the Boston miil in 1904 for the family that
currently owned the mill. The house was built in the Queen Anne style. It is in
excellent structural condition. Due to the exposed nature of the site there has been some
weather damage on the southwest side of the house. This has been recovered with contemporary
materials (wood shingles). Situated approximately 250' southwest of the Boston Mill, the
Thompson House faces the south and is surrounded by lawn and several 35 year old firs and
sequoias. The foundation of the Thompson house is of stone laid dry. The stone was quarried
in the nearby Cascade Mountains. The house is of stud wall construction with ship lap siding
and sheathing.

The house is a two story rectangle with a asphalt shingled hip roof which terminates in
a flat sheet metal covered area. The entry porch on the south facade supports a square
tower with a steeply-pitched roof. The porch posts are hand turned. To the west of the
entry is a two story bay window. The north and east sides of the house have a connected
porch which on the north has been enclosed to form a utility room. The windows are double
hung single pane sash. The frames have a moulded cap.

In 1910 a two story addition was added to the west side of the house,increasing the
number of bedrooms from four to eight. Materials,proportions and details were chosen to
match the original construction.

The interior of the house is sheathed in six-inch ship lap boards, over which flour
sacks were applied and then wallpaper. There have been at most three applications of wallpapel
to the presentsand they are intact. In the dining room there is a three foot high wainscot of
six inch wide beaded tongue and groove boards.that were painted. The kitchen walls are
plastered and painted. The five inch wide door and window interior trim boards are grooved;
the corner blocks have a simplified incised rosette. The frames are thought to have been
originally varnished but now all are painted,as are the doors. The floors are six inch wide
boards with linoleum rugs. The cabinet work along the dining room and in the kitchen are
all painted wood.

(See diagrams, reverse side)
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Summary of Recent Damage

On June 22, 1979, a section of load-bearing flume wall collapsed. Approxi -
mately twenty-five percent of the floor space of the mi1l collapsed into the
water with the wall. This caused the mill operators to reduce production by ca.
fifty percent, and, should the damage not be corrected, the mill will be forced
to shut down completely when winter run-off causes the water to rise in the flume.

The flume runs on an essentially north-south axis. Two concrete flume walls,
the western one ca. 100' Tong and attaching to the 1863 main mill foundation, and
the eastern one ca. 60' long and attaching to the floodgate foundations, were con-
structed in 1937. These flume walls are approximately 14' in height and 18" thick.
It appears that these walls were constructed with very little iron reinforcement
on improper footings. Supported by the western wall were 10' of a 1900 addition
and two floors of a 1937 addition ca. 10' wide and 90' lTong. Also tied into the
second floor addition was a storage floor built in 1940 than spanned the flume and
rested on the eastern flume wall.

Approximately 50' of the western wall, from the original mill building northward,
was the section that collapsed. This obviously caused the ten feet of the 1900
addition and 40' of the 1937 addition to collapse and caused serious structural
damage to the remaining 50' of the 1937 addition. Also, a 20-foot length of the
storage space over the flume collapsed. The collapse of the wall also caused erosior
from under the support piles directly west of the 1937 addition and north of the
main building, thus seriously endangering a 1900 and 1917 addition. No major machin-
ery was lost, but flooring was weakened sufficiently to cause a shutdown of a major-
ity of the machinery for safety purposes. Also, although it didn't collapse, it
appears that the eastern flume wall is in need of replacement or reinforcement.

(see accompanying diagram for extent of damage)
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Boston Mill, erected in 1863 and enlarged at the turn of the century, in 1917, and
again in the 1930s, is significant to Oregon as one of only two nineteenth century water-
powered fouring mills in the state still in operation. The historic enterprise took its
name from the Boston townsite, which was platted in 1862, reached its zenith about 1869,
and was eclipsed by the coming of the Oregon and California Railroad 1ittle over a mile to
the west in 1871--an event which gave rise to the community of Shedd. The eight-acre area
proposed for nomination includes the clapboarded turn-of-the-century Queen Anne Style house
of Martin Thompson, who acquired a half interest in the mill in 1891 and succeeded to full
ownership by 1897. Thompson and his descendents owned and operated the mill for the next
seventy-six years. The property passed to the current owner in 1973. The mill site is on
the floor of the Willamette Valley rather than in the foothills of the Cascades. The loca-
tion was chosen for its proximity to the farms which produced grain on the flat prairie,
and, as a result, a five-mile water course was required to get enough drop for the mill to
function. Since 1955 the milling of flour has been discontinued, and the mill now produces
Tivestock feed exclusively. ' :

The builder of the mill, Richard C. Finley, and his family came to Oregon by wagon
train in 1846. After building two mills in the Crawfordsville area, he moved to the con-
fluence of the Calapooia River and Courtney Creek in 1858. New 1land was purchased from
Americus Savage and his wife, Mary Ann, who had obtained it as a Donation Land Claim. With
his partners, Alex Brandon and Philemon B. Crawford (founder of Crawfordsville), Richard
Finley began building a buhr mill. The beams for the mill are said to have been hand hewn
in Crawfordsville and floated down the Calapooia River to the mill site.

In the words of Floyd C. Mullen, author of Land of Linn, "for more than a century,
Boston Flour Mi1l was a landmark to residents of Linn County and to valley travelers who
depended upon flour and livestock feed. Men would take their wheat to the mi1l by horse-
back or on wagons from miles around and exchange it for flour." The mill continues to be
an grea landmark and a symbol of the continuance of nineteenth century industrial tradition
in Oregon.

In 1852 P. V. Crawford established a pack train carrying flour to the goldfields of
California, making ten trips a year. Crawford is said to have become well known for his
Magnolia brand flour and Magnolia self-rising flour.

The original Boston Mill was destroyed by fire in 1862. The fire is said to have
originated in the adjoining carding factory, where a fire had to be maintained for the sake
of keeping the wool stock at optimum temperature. The flour mill was soon rebuilt with
another set of hand-hewn beams from Crawfordsville. The replacement structure is the core
of the exisiting building. '

In 1862 the would-be metropolis of Boston was platted. People from all parts of the
Willamette Valley and as far south as Yreka, California came to settle in Boston. In its
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heyday, in 1869, Boston had a post office, a general store, a blacksmith shop, and the
flour mill. The townsite was well known for a county fair held at the base of Bunker
Hi1l (a knoll to the east of town). The fair was the most important event of the year
for Linn County residents. A great deal of local rivalry developed over the horse races
and agricultural exhibits.

Boston's prosperity owed to the announced plans of the Oregon and California Railroad
to lTocate the main north-south line adjacent to the townsite. However, the plans changed,
and the tracks were located within two miles to the west near Shedd Station, which was a
stagecoach layover. Moving the post office to Shedd in 1871 dealt the death blow to Bostor
With its proximity to the railroad, Shedd was better able to provide services, and residents
of Boston relocated themselves at Shedd. The decline of the old townsite scarcely affectec
the miTlling operation, however, which continued to flourish at its original location.

Martin Thompson, for whom the mill is now more widely known, bought a half interest
in Boston Mill in 1891 and obtained full ownership in 1897. The mill continued to be op-
erated by the Thompson family until 1973. 1In 1891 a steel roller mill was installed that
could mi1l white flour. However, in 1955 the milling of flour was discontinued due to
competition from Targer companies. The mill's production of livestock feed increased to
take up the slack, and today Boston Mill supplies most of the small feed and seed stores
in the area. :

Record of ownership of Boston Mill in the 19th century

1858 R. C. Finley and Co., 1/2; and R. C. Finley, 1/2 interest
1866 William Simmons 1/2; and R. C. Finley, 1/2 interest

1875 William Simmons 1/2; and Al and Ed Simmons, 1/2 interest
1878 Al and Ed Simmons

1885 William Simmons

1887 William Simmons 1/2; and R. C. Finley, 1/2 interest

1891 William Simmons 1/2; and Stan Noel, 1/2 interest

1891 William Simmons 1/2; and Martin Thompson, 1/2 interest
1897 Martin Thompson

In 1973 the entire mill ownership was conveyed by the heirs of Martin Thompson
to James and Merlene Danaher. In 1977 Merlene Danaher became sole owner of the mill.
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